

# MSCI SDG Alignment Methodology

**MSCI ESG Research** 

January 2024

© 2024 MSCI Inc. All rights reserved. Please refer to the disclaimer at the end of this document.



# Contents

Introduction4
Objectives4
Methodology5
Model Output 5
SDG Product Alignment7
SDG Operational Alignment
Exceptions12
Inputs and data sources13
Coverage14
SDG Alignment Methodology by SDG14
SDG 1: No Poverty 14
SDG 2: Zero Hunger16
SDG 3: Good Health & Well-Being18
SDG 4: Quality Education
SDG 5: Gender Equality 22
SDG 6: Clean Water and Sanitation24
SDG 7: Affordable and Clean Energy26
SDG 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth27
SDG 9: Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure
SDG 10: Reduced Inequalities
SDG 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities
SDG 12: Responsible Consumption and Production35
SDG 13: Climate Action
SDG 14: Life Below Water
SDG 15: Life on Land
SDG 16: Peace, Justice and Strong Institutions
SDG 17: Partnership for the Goals 44
References



Appendix 1: Data updates and quality review	.48
Appendix 2: Summary of methodology updates	.48



# Introduction

The MSCI SDG Alignment methodology underpins MSCI's assessment of companies' alignment with the 17 United Nations (UN) Sustainable Development Goals (SDGs). The SDGs were agreed to by 193 countries in 2015 with a target date for delivery of 2030. The SDGs aim to foster collaboration within and between international private and public stakeholders to address critical global challenges such as poverty, inequality, climate change, environmental degradation, peace and justice (United Nations n.d.a).

#### Exhibit 1: UN Sustainable Development Goals



Source: United Nations n.d.a

# **Objectives**

The overall objective of the MSCI SDG Alignment methodology is to provide a holistic view of companies' net contribution – positive combined with negative – towards addressing each of the 17 SDGs. This methodology, built with input from the Organisation for Economic Co-operation and Development (OECD),<sup>1</sup> aims to address the following key objectives:

**Credibility & transparency:** MSCI SDG Alignment is built on an understanding that a single company may contribute to a variety of goals in a variety of ways (positively and negatively). For this reason, we take a broad view of companies' contribution to SDGs using publicly available information, rather than relying on companies self-declared alignment with the goals.

**Measurability:** MSCI SDG Alignment offers the ability to measure and report on investments' alignment with the SDGs with reference to a common set of benchmarks.

**Scalability & flexibility**: The MSCI SDG Alignment methodology is built to allow scalability of the assessment as new best practices and products evolve.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>1</sup> For additional information about the model and research, please see Eastman et al. 2018.



# Methodology

## **Model Output**

The MSCI SDG Alignment methodology defines an assessment of each company's overall alignment with each of the 17 individual SDGs, called SDG Net Alignment. This is expressed both in the form of a numeric score (on a -10 to 10 scale) and in the form of a categorical assessment (on a scale from Strongly Aligned to Strongly Misaligned).<sup>2</sup> We do not provide an aggregate company-level assessment. For each company, in addition to the 17 SDG Net Alignment Scores and 17 SDG Net Alignment Assessments, we also determine scores and assessments of the alignment of the company's (1) operations and (2) products and services for each of the 17 SDGs:

- SDG Product Alignment Score.
- SDG Operational Alignment Score.
- SDG Product Alignment Assessment (based on the SDG Product Alignment Score).
- SDG Operational Alignment Assessment (based on the SDG Operational Alignment Score).

The methodology for determining these Product and Operational Alignment Scores and Assessments is discussed in Sections 3.2 and 3.3.

As a result, the output of the model per company includes 51 scores and 51 corresponding assessments:

- 17 SDG Net Alignment Scores.
- 17 SDG Product Alignment Scores.
- 17 SDG Operational Alignment Scores.
- 17 SDG Net Alignment Assessments.
- 17 SDG Product Alignment Assessments.
- 17 SDG Operational Alignment Assessments.

SDG Net Alignment Assessments, SDG Product Alignment Assessments, and SDG Operational Alignment Assessments are determined by the corresponding scores (e.g., The SDG Net Alignment Assessment is determined by the SDG Net Alignment Score) and may have one of five values:

- Score >5.0: Strongly Aligned.
- Score between 2.0 and 5.0, inclusive: Aligned.
- Score less than 2.0 but higher than -2.0: Neutral.
- Score equal to or less than -2.0 but higher than -10: Misaligned.
- Score equal to -10: Strongly Misaligned.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>2</sup> For additional details on the definition of rating scales, refer to "MSCI ESG and Climate Symbols and Definitions" available here.

#### **SDG Net Alignment Scores and Assessments**

MSCI

Each SDG Net Alignment Score is a simple average of the relevant SDG Product Alignment Score and SDG Operational Alignment Score, except in cases where either the SDG Product Alignment Score or the SDG Operational Alignment Score is -10 (corresponding to an assessment of Strongly Misaligned). In those cases, the SDG Net Alignment Score is also -10 (see Exhibit 4).

A company may only receive a -10 SDG Product Alignment Score or SDG Operational Alignment Score and a corresponding Strongly Misaligned SDG Product Alignment Assessment or SDG Operational Alignment Assessment when at least one of the following criteria is met:

- Generates over 50% of its revenue from products and services with adverse impact related to an SDG (resulting in an SDG Product Alignment Score of -10).
- Has been involved in one or more Red Flag controversies related to the SDG (resulting in an SDG Operational Alignment Score of -10).

PRODUCT ALIGNMENT

|      |   | PRODUCT ALIGNMENT   |  |  
   
   
  |  |   
   
   
  |  
   
  |  |   
   |   |   
   
   |   
   
  |   |  
   |  |  |   |  |  
   |   |   |   |
|------|---|---|--
--
--
--
---|--
--
--
--
--
--
---|--|---
---
--
--
---
--
--
--|---|--|--|--
---|--|--|---
---|---|
|      |   | Strongly Aligned  |  |  
   
   
  | d  |   
   
   
  | Aligned Neutral  
   
  |  |   
   |   |   
   
   |   
   
  | Misaligned  |  
   |  |  |   |  | SM*  
   |   |   |   |
|      |   | 10  | 9  | 8  
   
   
  | 7  | 6   
   
   
  | 5  
   
  | 4  | 3   
   | 2   | 1   
   
   | 0   
   
  | -1  | -2   
   | -3   | -4   | -5  | -6   | -7   
   | -8  | -9  | -10   |
|      |   |   |  |  
   
   
  |  |   
   
   
  |  
   
  |  |   
   |   |   
   
   |   
   
  |   |  
   |  |  |   |  |  
   |   |   |   |
| B    | 10  | 10  | 9.5  | 9.0  
   
   
  | 8.5  | 8.0   
   
   
  | 7.5  
   
  | 7.0  | 6.5   
   | 6.0   | 5.5   
   
   | 5.0   
   
  | 4.5   | 4.0  
   | 3.5  | 3.0  | 2.5   | 2.0  | 1.5  
   | 1.0   | 0.5   | -10   |
| ig   | 9   | 9.5   | 9.0  | 8.5  
   
   
  | 8.0  | 7.5   
   
   
  | 7.0  
   
  | 6.5  | 6.0   
   | 5.5   | 5.0   
   
   | 4.5   
   
  | 4.0   | 3.5  
   | 3.0  | 2.5  | 2.0   | 1.5  | 1.0  
   | 0.5   | 0.0   | -10   |
| y AI | 8   | 9.0   | 8.5  | 8.0  
   
   
  | 7.5  | 7.0   
   
   
  | 6.5  
   
  | 6.0  | 5.5   
   | 5.0   | 4.5   
   
   | 4.0   
   
  | 3.5   | 3.0  
   | 2.5  | 2.0  | 1.5   | 1.0  | 0.5  
   | 0.0   | -0.5  | -10   |
| bug  | 7   | 9.5   | 0.0  | 7.5  
   
   
  | 7.0  | 6.5   
   
   
  | 6.0  
   
  | 5.5  | 5.0   
   |   | 4.0   
   
   | 2.5   
   
  |   | 2.5  
   | 2.0  |  |   |  |  
   |   |   |   |
| Stro |   |   |  |  
   
   
  |  |   
   
   
  |  
   
  |  |   
   |   |   
   
   |   
   
  |   |  
   |  |  |   |  |  
   |   |   |   |
|      | 6   | 8.0   | 7.5  | 7.0  
   
   
  | 6.5  | 6.0   
   
   
  | 5.5  
   
  | 5.0  | 4.5   
   | 4.0   | 3.5   
   
   | 3.0   
   
  | 2.5   | 2.0  
   | 1.5  | 1.0  | 0.5   | 0.0  | -0.5   
   | -1.0  | -1.5  | -10   |
|      | 5   | 7.5   | 7.0  | 6.5  
   
   
  | 6.0  | 5.5   
   
   
  | 5.0  
   
  | 4.5  | 4.0   
   | 3.5   | 3.0   
   
   | 2.5   
   
  | 2.0   | 1.5  
   | 1.0  | 0.5  | 0.0   | -0.5   | -1.0   
   | -1.5  | -2.0  | -10   |
| Ъ    | 4   | 7.0   | 6.5  | 6.0  
   
   
  | 5.5  | 5.0   
   
   
  | 4.5  
   
  | 4.0  | 3.5   
   | 3.0   | 2.5   
   
   | 2.0   
   
  | 1.5   | 1.0  
   | 0.5  | 0.0  | -0.5  | -1.0   | -1.5   
   | -2.0  | -2.5  | -10   |
| Alig | 3   | 6.5   | 6.0  | 5.5  
   
   
  | 5.0  | 4.5   
   
   
  | 4.0  
   
  | 3.5  | 3.0   
   | 2.5   | 2.0   
   
   | 1.5   
   
  | 1.0   | 0.5  
   | 0.0  | -0.5   | -1.0  | -1.5   | -2.0   
   | -2.5  | -3.0  | -10   |
| ~    | 2   | 6.0   | 5.5  | 5.0  
   
   
  | 4.5  | 4.0   
   
   
  | 2.5  
   
  | 2.0  | 2.5   
   | 2.0   |   
   
   |   
   
  |   |  
   |  |  |   |  |  
   |   |   |   |
|      |   |   |  |  
   
   
  |  |   
   
   
  |  
   
  |  |   
   |   |   
   
   |   
   
  |   |  
   |  |  |   |  |  
   |   |   |   |
| æ    | 1   | 5.5   | 5.0  | 4.5  
   
   
  | 4.0  | 3.5   
   
   
  | 3.0  
   
  | 2.5  | 2.0   
   | 1.5   | 1.0   
   
   | 0.5   
   
  | 0.0   | -0.5   
   | -1.0   | -1.5   | -2.0  | -2.5   | -3.0   
   | -3.5  | -4.0  | -10   |
| leut | 0   | 5.0   | 4.5  | 4.0  
   
   
  | 3.5  | 3.0   
   
   
  | 2.5  
   
  | 2.0  | 1.5   
   | 1.0   | 0.5   
   
   | 0.0   
   
  | -0.5  | -1.0   
   | -1.5   | -2.0   | -2.5  | -3.0   | -3.5   
   | -4.0  | -4.5  | -10   |
| z    | -1  | 4.5   | 4.0  | 3.5  
   
   
  | 3.0  | 2.5   
   
   
  | 2.0  
   
  | 1.5  | 1.0   
   | 0.5   | 0.0   
   
   | -0.5  
   
  | -1.0  | -1.5   
   | -2.0   | -2.5   | -3.0  | -3.5   | -4.0   
   | -4.5  | -5.0  | -10   |
| - 1  | -2  | 4.0   | 3.5  | 3.0  
   
   
  | 2.5  | 2.0   
   
   
  | 1.5  
   
  | 1.0  | 0.5   
   | 0.0   | -0.5  
   
   | -1.0  
   
  | -1.5  | -2.0   
   | -2.5   | -3.0   | -3.5  | -4.0   | -4.5   
   | -5.0  | -5.5  | -10   |
|      | 2   | 2.5   | 2.0  | 2.5  
   
   
  | 2.0  | 15  
   
   
  |  
   
  |  |   
   |   |   
   
   |   
   
  |   |  
   |  |  |   |  |  
   |   |   |   |
|      | -   |   |  |  
   
   
  |  |   
   
   
  |  
   
  |  |   
   |   |   
   
   |   
   
  |   |  
   |  |  |   |  |  
   |   |   |   |
| B    | -4  | 3.0   | 2.5  | 2.0  
   
   
  | 1.5  | 1.0   
   
   
  | 0.5  
   
  | 0.0  | -0.5  
   | -1.0  | -1.5  
   
   | -2.0  
   
  | -2.5  | -3.0   
   | -3.5   | -4.0   | -4.5  | -5.0   | -5.5   
   | -6.0  | -6.5  | -10   |
| igne | -5  | 2.5   | 2.0  | 1.5  
   
   
  | 1.0  | 0.5   
   
   
  | 0.0  
   
  | -0.5   | -1.0  
   | -1.5  | -2.0  
   
   | -2.5  
   
  | -3.0  | -3.5   
   | -4.0   | -4.5   | -5.0  | -5.5   | -6.0   
   | -6.5  | -7.0  | -10   |
| sa   | -6  | 2.0   | 1.5  | 1.0  
   
   
  | 0.5  | 0.0   
   
   
  | -0.5   
   
  | -1.0   | -1.5  
   | -2.0  | -2.5  
   
   | -3.0  
   
  | -3.5  | -4.0   
   | -4.5   | -5.0   | -5.5  | -6.0   | -6.5   
   | -7.0  | -7.5  | -10   |
| Σ    | -7  | 1.5   | 1.0  | 0.5  
   
   
  | 0.0  | -0.5  
   
   
  | -1.0   
   
  | -1.5   | -2.0  
   | -2.5  | -3.0  
   
   | -3.5  
   
  | -4.0  | -4.5   
   | -5.0   | -5.5   | -6.0  | -6.5   | -7.0   
   | -7.5  | -8.0  | -10   |
|      |   | 1.0   |  |  
   
   
  |  |   
   
   
  |  
   
  |  |   
   |   |   
   
   |   
   
  |   |  
   |  |  |   |  |  
   |   |   |   |
|      | -   |   |  |  
   
   
  |  |   
   
   
  |  
   
  |  |   
   |   |   
   
   |   
   
  |   |  
   |  |  |   |  |  
   |   |   |   |
|      | -9  | 0.5   | 0.0  | -0.5   
   
   
  | -1.0   | -1.5  
   
   
  | -2.0   
   
  | -2.5   | -3.0  
   | -3.5  | -4.0  
   
   | -4.5  
   
  | -5.0  | -5.5   
   | -6.0   | -6.5   | -7.0  | -7.5   | -8.0   
   | -8.5  | -9.0  | -10   |
| SM   | -10   | -10   | -10  | -10  
   
   
  | -10  | -10   
   
   
  | -10  
   
  | -10  | -10   
   | -10   | -10   
   
   | -10   
   
  | -10   | -10  
   | -10  | -10  | -10   | -10  | -10  
   | -10   | -10   | -10   |
|      | SM <sup>1</sup> Misaligned Neutral Aligned Strongly Aligned | 6         5           4         3           2         1           1         0           -1         -2           -3         -4           -5         -6           -8         -9 | IO           10         10           9         9.5           9         9.5           8         9.0           8         9.0           7         8.5           6         8.0           5         7.5           4         7.0           3         6.5           2         6.0           1         5.5           0         5.0           -1         4.5           0         -1           0         5.0           -1         4.5           0         -1           -2         4.0           -3         3.5           -4         3.0           -5         2.5           -6         2.0           -7         1.5           -8         1.0           -7         5.0           -6         2.5           -7         1.5           -8         1.0           -9         0.5 | 10         9           10         10         9.5         9.0           9         9.5         9.0         8.0           8         9.0         8.5         8.0           7         8.5         8.0         7.5           6         8.0         7.5         7.0           4         7.0         6.5         6.0           1         6.5         6.0         5.0           1         6.5         6.0         5.0           1         6.5         6.0         5.0           1         6.5         6.0         5.0           1         6.5         6.0         5.0           1         6.5         6.0         5.0           1         6.5         6.0         5.0           1         6.5         6.0         5.0           1         6.5         3.0         5.0           1         6.5         3.0         5.0           1         6.5         3.0         5.0           1         6.5         2.0         5.0           1         6.0         1.0         5.0           1         6.0         1.0 <th>IO         9         8           10         10         9.5         9.0           9         9.5         9.0         8.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5           8         9.0         8.5         8.0           7         8.5         8.0         7.5           6         8.0         7.5         7.0           5         7.5         7.0         6.5           4         7.0         6.5         6.0           4         7.0         6.5         6.0           4         7.0         6.5         6.0           10         5.5         5.0         4.5           11         5.5         5.0         4.5           0         5.0         4.5         4.0           11         5.5         5.0         4.5           0         5.0         4.5         4.0           11         4.5         4.0         3.5           12         4.0         3.5         3.0           -2         4.0         3.5         2.0           -3         3.5         2.0         1.5           -4</th> <th>IO         9         8         7           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0           9         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5           7         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           7         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.0           9         6.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0           11         6.5         5.0         4.5         4.0           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         3.0           11         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           10         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0           11         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           10         5.0         5.0         1.5         1.0           12         4.0<th>10         9         8         7         6           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5           8         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           7         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           7         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           7         6.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           8         6.0         5.0         6.5         5.0         4.5           10         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.0           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         3.0         3.0           12         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0           13         6.5         3.0<!--</th--><th>10         9         8         7         6         5           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           9         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         5.0           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5           10         6.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           10         5.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0         1.5</th><th>10         9         8         7         6         5         4           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         9.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         6.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5           10         6.5         7.0         6.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           11         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         3.0         2.5         2.0           11         6.5         8.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0</th><th>Network in the sector of the sector o</th><th>BUBURDENT NO ADDENTBUBURDENT NO ADDENT10109.08.07.06.05.06.07.0909.09.08.07.07.07.06.06.05.0909.08.07.07.07.07.06.06.05.0909.08.07.07.07.07.06.06.05.05.0706.07.07.06.07.06.05.05.05.05.05.0706.07.06.07.06.05.05.05.05.05.05.05.05.0706.07.06.05.0<td< th=""><th>Big         Big         Constraints         <thconstraint< th=""><th>Image: strate type of the st</th><th>Image: strate strate</th><th>Image: series of the series of the</th><th>Image: series of the series of the</th><th>Image: black         Aligner         New set of the set of</th><th>Image: balance balance</th><th>Image: bold of the section of the sectin of the sectin of the section of the section of the section of</th><th>Image: Normal and the series of the</th><th>Image: Normal and the section of the sectio</th><th>Image: bold in the second of the se</th></thconstraint<></th></td<></th></th></th> | IO         9         8           10         10         9.5         9.0           9         9.5         9.0         8.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5           8         9.0         8.5         8.0           7         8.5         8.0         7.5           6         8.0         7.5         7.0           5         7.5         7.0         6.5           4         7.0         6.5         6.0           4         7.0         6.5         6.0           4         7.0         6.5         6.0           10         5.5         5.0         4.5           11         5.5         5.0         4.5           0         5.0         4.5         4.0           11         5.5         5.0         4.5           0         5.0         4.5         4.0           11         4.5         4.0         3.5           12         4.0         3.5         3.0           -2         4.0         3.5         2.0           -3         3.5         2.0         1.5           -4 | IO         9         8         7           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0           9         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5           7         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           7         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.0           9         6.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0           11         6.5         5.0         4.5         4.0           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         3.0           11         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           10         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0           11         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           10         5.0         5.0         1.5         1.0           12         4.0 <th>10         9         8         7         6           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5           8         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           7         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           7         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           7         6.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           8         6.0         5.0         6.5         5.0         4.5           10         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.0           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         3.0         3.0           12         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0           13         6.5         3.0<!--</th--><th>10         9         8         7         6         5           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           9         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         5.0           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5           10         6.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           10         5.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0         1.5</th><th>10         9         8         7         6         5         4           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         9.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         6.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5           10         6.5         7.0         6.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           11         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         3.0         2.5         2.0           11         6.5         8.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0</th><th>Network in the sector of the sector o</th><th>BUBURDENT NO ADDENTBUBURDENT NO ADDENT10109.08.07.06.05.06.07.0909.09.08.07.07.07.06.06.05.0909.08.07.07.07.07.06.06.05.0909.08.07.07.07.07.06.06.05.05.0706.07.07.06.07.06.05.05.05.05.05.0706.07.06.07.06.05.05.05.05.05.05.05.05.0706.07.06.05.0<td< th=""><th>Big         Big         Constraints         <thconstraint< th=""><th>Image: strate type of the st</th><th>Image: strate strate</th><th>Image: series of the series of the</th><th>Image: series of the series of the</th><th>Image: black         Aligner         New set of the set of</th><th>Image: balance balance</th><th>Image: bold of the section of the sectin of the sectin of the section of the section of the section of</th><th>Image: Normal and the series of the</th><th>Image: Normal and the section of the sectio</th><th>Image: bold in the second of the se</th></thconstraint<></th></td<></th></th> | 10         9         8         7         6           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5           8         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           7         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           7         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           6         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0           7         6.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           8         6.0         5.0         6.5         5.0         4.5           10         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.0           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         3.0         3.0           12         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0           13         6.5         3.0 </th <th>10         9         8         7         6         5           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           9         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         5.0           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5           10         6.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           10         5.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0         1.5</th> <th>10         9         8         7         6         5         4           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         9.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         6.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5           10         6.5         7.0         6.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           11         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         3.0         2.5         2.0           11         6.5         8.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0</th> <th>Network in the sector of the sector o</th> <th>BUBURDENT NO ADDENTBUBURDENT NO ADDENT10109.08.07.06.05.06.07.0909.09.08.07.07.07.06.06.05.0909.08.07.07.07.07.06.06.05.0909.08.07.07.07.07.06.06.05.05.0706.07.07.06.07.06.05.05.05.05.05.0706.07.06.07.06.05.05.05.05.05.05.05.05.0706.07.06.05.0<td< th=""><th>Big         Big         Constraints         <thconstraint< th=""><th>Image: strate type of the st</th><th>Image: strate strate</th><th>Image: series of the series of the</th><th>Image: series of the series of the</th><th>Image: black         Aligner         New set of the set of</th><th>Image: balance balance</th><th>Image: bold of the section of the sectin of the sectin of the section of the section of the section of</th><th>Image: Normal and the series of the</th><th>Image: Normal and the section of the sectio</th><th>Image: bold in the second of the se</th></thconstraint<></th></td<></th> | 10         9         8         7         6         5           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           9         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         5.0           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5           10         6.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           11         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           10         5.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0         1.5 | 10         9         8         7         6         5         4           10         10         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           9         9.5         9.0         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5           10         9.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         8.5         8.0         7.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5           10         6.5         7.0         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5           10         6.5         7.0         6.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5           10         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         4.0         3.5         3.0         2.5           11         6.5         6.0         5.5         5.0         4.5         3.0         2.5         2.0           11         6.5         8.0         3.5         3.0         2.5         2.0 | Network in the sector of the sector o | BUBURDENT NO ADDENTBUBURDENT NO ADDENT10109.08.07.06.05.06.07.0909.09.08.07.07.07.06.06.05.0909.08.07.07.07.07.06.06.05.0909.08.07.07.07.07.06.06.05.05.0706.07.07.06.07.06.05.05.05.05.05.0706.07.06.07.06.05.05.05.05.05.05.05.05.0706.07.06.05.0 <td< th=""><th>Big         Big         Constraints         <thconstraint< th=""><th>Image: strate type of the st</th><th>Image: strate strate</th><th>Image: series of the series of the</th><th>Image: series of the series of the</th><th>Image: black         Aligner         New set of the set of</th><th>Image: balance balance</th><th>Image: bold of the section of the sectin of the sectin of the section of the section of the section of</th><th>Image: Normal and the series of the</th><th>Image: Normal and the section of the sectio</th><th>Image: bold in the second of the se</th></thconstraint<></th></td<> | Big         Big         Constraints         Constraints <thconstraint< th=""><th>Image: strate type of the st</th><th>Image: strate strate</th><th>Image: series of the series of the</th><th>Image: series of the series of the</th><th>Image: black         Aligner         New set of the set of</th><th>Image: balance balance</th><th>Image: bold of the section of the sectin of the sectin of the section of the section of the section of</th><th>Image: Normal and the series of the</th><th>Image: Normal and the section of the sectio</th><th>Image: bold in the second of the se</th></thconstraint<> | Image: strate type of the st | Image: strate | Image: series of the | Image: series of the | Image: black         Aligner         New set of the set of | Image: balance | Image: bold of the section of the sectin of the sectin of the section of the section of the section of | Image: Normal and the series of the | Image: Normal and the section of the sectio | Image: bold in the second of the se |

#### Exhibit 2: MSCI SDG Net Alignment Scores and Assessments

SM\* = Strongly Misaligned



The SDG Alignment methodology is built on the premise that companies may contribute to the SDGs in a variety of ways (both positively and negatively) and across several impact areas. Any given company may be strongly contributing to addressing one or more of the 17 SDGs while negatively contributing to others through the company's business activities, products, operational practices or involvement in controversies. It also may have no significant positive or negative impact on some SDGs, showing a neutral contribution towards a given goal.



#### Exhibit 3: Example of the SDG Net Alignment assessment of a food retail company

## **SDG Product Alignment**

SDG Product Alignment Scores and Assessments measure the net impact of a company's products and services on achieving targets associated with each of the 17 SDGs. Net impact implies that some of a company's products and services may be well aligned with achieving the SDG, while other products and services may have an adverse impact and be misaligned with achieving the SDG. The methodology for determining SDG Product Alignment builds on the MSCI Sustainable Impact Metrics methodology for estimating companies' revenue from products and services addressing relevant SDGs and expands the methodology to include products and services with potentially adverse impacts on achieving SDGs.<sup>3</sup>

#### **Positive and Negative Product Alignment Scores**

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>3</sup> This expansion is based on the MSCI Business Involvement Screening Research methodology and selected revenue exposure data from MSCI ESG Ratings.



Estimated revenue from products and services that contribute positively to addressing an SDG (e.g., wind power generation for SDG 7) are scored based on revenue ranges of 0% to 100%, with corresponding Positive Product Alignment Scores ranging from 0 to 10.

Estimated revenue from products and services that are negatively aligned with an SDG (e.g., coalfired power generation for SDG 7) are scored based on revenue ranges of 0% to 100%, with corresponding Negative Product Alignment Scores ranging from 0 to -10.

Instead of using direct conversion from revenue percentages to Positive and Negative Product Alignment Scores, we apply scoring ranges to account for revenue estimation (see Exhibit 4, below). For example, where between 25% and 50% of a company's revenue comes from products with positive impact, the result is a Positive Product Alignment Score of 7.

#### **SDG Product Alignment Scores and Assessments**

The SDG Product Alignment Score is calculated as the sum of a company's Positive Product Alignment Score and Negative Product Alignment Score for that SDG.

#### **Example Calculation of an SDG Product Alignment Score**

The following is an example calculation of a company's SDG Product Alignment Score for SDG 7 (Affordable and Clean Energy):

#### Step 1: Calculate the Positive Product Alignment Score

A utility company has 20% of revenue from solar photovoltaic power generation. Using the scoring ranges in Exhibit 4, this revenue yields a scoring contribution of 5 points to the company's Positive Product Alignment Score. The company has no other revenue from products and services with positive impact on this SDG, so the result is a Positive Product Alignment Score of 5.

#### Step 2: Calculate the Negative Product Alignment Score

The company also has 40% of revenue from coal-fired power generation. Using the scoring ranges in Exhibit 4, this revenue yields a scoring contribution of -7 points to the company's Negative Product Alignment Score. The company has no other revenue from products and services with negative impact on this SDG, so the result is a Negative Product Alignment Score of -7.

#### Step 3: Calculate the SDG Product Alignment Score

The sum of the company's Positive Product Alignment Score of 5 and Negative Product Alignment Score of -7 yields an SDG Product Alignment Score of -2 for SDG 7.

For certain SDGs, there is no data to support positive and/or negative product alignment due to a lack of consistently disclosed information, and for this reason no data points are assessed by MSCI to measure companies' positive product alignment, negative product alignment, or both. In those cases, the corresponding score(s) (i.e., the Positive Product Alignment Score, the Negative Product Alignment Score, or both scores) are treated as 0 (a neutral contribution) for the purposes of calculating the SDG Product Alignment Score.

#### **SDG Product Alignment Assessment**

The SDG Product Alignment Assessment is calculated based on the SDG Product Alignment Score, as detailed in Section 3.1, Model Output, above. In our example, the company's SDG Product Alignment Score of -2 yields an SDG Product Alignment Assessment of Misaligned for SDG 7.

Companies that generate over 50% of their revenue from products or services with a negative impact receive an SDG Product Alignment Score of -10 and an SDG Product Alignment Assessment of Strongly Misaligned, regardless of any offsetting positive impact revenues.

MSCI

Product Alignment Score	Score Contribution
Positive Product Alignment Score	
>50% of revenue aligned with SDG	+10
25 - 50% of revenue aligned with SDG	+7
10 - 25% of revenue aligned with SDG	+5
5 - 10% of revenue aligned with SDG	+3
0 - 5% of revenue aligned with SDG	+1
Negative Product Alignment Score	
0 - 5% of revenue negatively aligned with SDG	-1
5 - 10% of revenue negatively aligned with SDG	-3
10 - 25% of revenue negatively aligned with SDG	-5
25 - 50% of revenue negatively aligned with	_
SDG	-7
>50% of revenue negatively aligned with SDG	-10
Product Alignment Score	Range: -10 to 10

## **SDG Operational Alignment**

SDG Operational Alignment Scores and Assessments measure the extent to which companies' operations may result in a positive or negative impact on addressing specific Sustainable Development Goals. For each SDG, this measurement takes into consideration some combination of internal policies, targets and practices; trends in quantitative performance metrics (e.g., carbon emissions intensity, water withdrawals); involvement in operations with significant negative impacts (e.g., business activities typically associated with large volumes of toxic emissions), and controversies with negative impacts on achieving SDGs.

For example, a company that commits to workforce diversity and has three female directors on the board may be determined to have an SDG Operational Alignment Assessment of Aligned with SDG 5 (Gender Equality). But if the company becomes implicated in controversies related to sexual harassment of female employees by senior management, the company's SDG Operational Alignment Assessment for SDG 5 may change to Misaligned or even Strongly Misaligned, depending on the number and flag of the controversies.

#### **Positive Operational Impact Scores**

SDG positive operational impact is assessed based on evidence of available policies, practices and targets to align a company's operations with relevant SDGs. This evidence is derived from publicly disclosed data from the companies themselves, our assessment of business activities' positive



impacts, and industry classifications based on the Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS).<sup>4,5</sup> Each assessed policy, practice or target showing evidence of alignment is determined to have a score contribution of 1 point. The score contributions from each data point are summed to derive the Positive Operational Impact Score. Positive operational impact data points are assessed for most, but not all, SDGs. For SDGs where no data points are assessed to measure companies' positive operational impact due to a lack of consistently disclosed information, the Positive Operational Impact Score is treated as 0 (a neutral contribution) for the purposes of calculating the SDG Operational Alignment Score.

#### **Negative Operational Impact Scores**

SDG negative operational impact is assessed based on evidence of negative impacts from operations (e.g., fracking operations, which contribute to water pollution). As with SDG positive operational impact, this evidence is publicly disclosed data from the companies themselves, our assessment of business activities' negative impacts, and industry classifications based on GICS data. Each data point showing negative impact of operations is determined to have a score contribution of -1 to the Negative Operational Impact Score. Data points are assessed to measure companies' negative operational impact for all SDGs.

SDG negative operational impact is also assessed based on the frequency and flag of controversies. Controversies are determined to have a score contribution from 0 to -10 to the Negative Operational Impact Score, depending on the frequency and flag of incidents. We leverage our extensive database of MSCI ESG Controversies and MSCI's existing methodology for identifying Red Flag, Orange Flag and Yellow Flag controversies (see exhibit 5 for more details).<sup>6</sup>

#### **Performance Scores**

A company's Performance Score, determined using quantitative metrics, can contribute to the overall SDG Operational Alignment Score either positively or negatively depending on the performance trend, if any. Various performance metrics are used to assess a company's operational performance trend over time for some, but not all, SDGs. These include energy consumption, carbon emissions, female employment, employee injury rates, and many others. A company's Performance Score on an SDG with performance metrics is based on the trend in the metrics:

- A significantly improving trend over the past 3 years is determined to have a score contribution of 2.<sup>7</sup>
- A significantly worsening trend over the past 3 years is determined to have a score contribution of -2.
- A stable trend over the past 3 years is determined to have a score contribution of 0.

For SDGs where no performance metrics are assessed, the Performance Score is treated as 0 (no contribution) for the purposes of calculating the SDG Operational Alignment Score.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>4</sup> The Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS®) is the global industry classification standard jointly developed by MSCI and S&P Global Market Intelligence.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>5</sup> For more information, see MSCI 2023.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>6</sup> MSCI's ESG Controversies methodology document is available at <u>https://www.msci.com/esg-and-climate-methodologies</u>.

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>7</sup> Trend scoring thresholds are predefined for each metric based on the underlying data.



#### **SDG Operational Alignment Scores and Assessments**

The SDG Operational Alignment Score is calculated based on the sum of a company's underlying Positive Operational Impact Score, Negative Operational Impact Score and Performance Score for that SDG.

#### Example Calculation of an SDG Operational Alignment Score

The following is an example calculation of a company's SDG Operational Alignment Score for SDG 7 (Affordable and Clean Energy):

#### Step 1: Calculate the Positive Operational Impact Score

A utility company has a target for carbon reduction (a policy) and its operations use energy from solar photovoltaics, a renewable energy source (a practice). Both the policy and the practice contribute 1 point each to the Positive Operational Impact Score, for a total Positive Operational Impact Score of 2.

#### Step 2: Calculate the Negative Operational Impact Score

The company has fossil fuel reserves, (a practice). This contributes -1 point to its Negative Operational Impact Score. The company is assessed by MSCI to have two Yellow Flag controversies, one related to energy and climate change and one relating to predatory fraud and billing over provision of electricity to customers. Together, two Yellow Flag controversies contribute -1 point to the Negative Operational Impact Score. Taken together, the scoring contributions from the company's operations and controversies yield a Negative Operational Impact Score of -2.

#### Step 3: Calculate the Performance Score

The utility also has a significantly improving trend over the past 3 years in a performance metric that is measured for this SDG: energy consumption intensity. This improving performance trend yields a Performance Score of 2.

#### Step 4: Combine the scores to calculate the SDG Operational Alignment Score

The utility company's Positive Operational Impact Score of 2, Negative Operational Impact Score of - 2 and Performance Score of 2 are summed to calculate the SDG Operational Alignment Score of 2.

#### **SDG Operational Alignment Assessment**

The SDG Operational Alignment Assessment is calculated based on the SDG Operational Alignment Score, as detailed in Section 3.1, Model Output, above. In our example, the company's SDG Operational Alignment Score of 2 yields an SDG Operational Alignment Assessment of Aligned for SDG 7.

Although the SDG Operational Alignment Score is assessed based on multiple subcomponents that could result in an aggregate score of -10 or less, an SDG Operational Alignment Score for any company without a Red Flag controversy is capped at a minimum value of -9. An SDG Operational Alignment Score of -10, corresponding to an SDG Operational Alignment Assessment of Strongly Misaligned, is only possible for companies involved in one or more Red Flag controversy (as assessed under the MSCI ESG Controversies Methodology).



#### Exhibit 5: SDG Operational Alignment score contributions

Operational Alignment Score	Score Contribution
Positive Operational Impact Score	
Policies aligned with the SDG	+1 each
Initiatives aligned with the SDG	+1 each
Targets aligned with the SDG	+1 each
Negative Operational Impact Score	
Involvement in operations with adverse impact	-1 each
Controversies	
Any Red Flag controversy*	-10
3 or more Orange Flag controversies	-7
7 or more Yellow Flag controversies	-7
1 or 2 Orange Flag controversies	-5
5 or 6 Yellow Flag controversies	-5
3 or 4 Yellow Flag controversies	-3
1 or 2 Yellow Flag controversies	-1
Performance Score	
Improving trend	+2
Stable trend	0
Worsening trend	-2
Operational Alignment Score	Range: -10 to 10

\* Criterion signifying automatic assessment of Strongly Misaligned

## **Exceptions**

#### SDG Net Alignment Score cap for SDGs 1, 5, and 10

We have capped the maximum SDG Net Alignment Score, SDG Product Alignment Score and SDG Operational Alignment Scores at 5 points each, and capped the corresponding SDG Net Alignment Assessment, SDG Product Alignment Assessment and SDG Operational Alignment Assessment at Aligned for SDG 1 (No Poverty), SDG 5 (Gender Equality) and SDG 10 (Reduced Inequalities). We established these caps because, while some products can indirectly support society in achieving these goals, it is difficult to establish a direct causal link between the products and services offered by a company and progress toward these goals for the following reasons.

• In many cases it is not possible to ascertain whether products are targeting the most vulnerable populations.

MSCI 💮

Example: we consider education services as helping to enable women's participation in the workforce. Yet, companies that offer educational materials, products and services may not explicitly target women and girls.

• While we capture companies' workforce policies around diversity, equality, and employment opportunities, it is difficult to establish a direct link between such polices and progress towards achieving the ultimate goals.

Example: We found no significant difference in the number or flag of controversies alleging discrimination and unfair treatment of employees for companies that had diversity policies and programs (e.g., employee training, equal opportunity employment) and those that did not.

# Inputs and data sources

The MSCI SDG Alignment methodology is designed to use qualitative and quantitative inputs to evaluate companies' alignment with specific SDGs. The methodology is built using inputs from MSCI ESG Research datasets. These include company-reported data, assessments based on MSCI ESG Research methodologies (mentioned below), and revenue estimates of certain business activities. Business activity estimates are primarily based on the proportion of companies' products, business segments or production volumes that are within the scope of the activity. Generally, we obtain data on an ongoing basis.

The following elements of MSCI ESG Research proprietary data sets were used in the construction of the methodology:

- MSCI Sustainable Impact Metrics: estimated percentage of revenue from products and services aligned with SDG objectives.
- MSCI Business Involvement Screening: estimated percentage of revenue from products and services with negative impact on the environment or society (e.g., tobacco).
- MSCI ESG Ratings (Risk Exposure): estimated percentage of revenue from products and services with negative impact on the environment (e.g., plastic packaging materials), and as an indication of companies' involvement in operations with adverse impact on the environment (e.g., offshore drilling as an operation with adverse impact on marine ecology).
- MSCI ESG Metrics: indicators showing evidence of relevant policies, practices and targets that are aligned with a specific SDG (e.g., evidence of a workforce diversity policy, evidence of targets towards reducing consumption of resources in operations) and quantitative performance metrics (e.g., 3-year trend in carbon emissions)
- MSCI ESG Controversies: companies' direct or indirect involvement in actions or events with adverse impact on the environment (e.g., oil spills) or society (e.g., labor rights violations)

We collect data from publicly available sources only (including those available with a paid subscription), including corporate disclosures, media sources, government databases, nongovernmental organizations, trade and industry associations, multilateral organizations, and academic think tanks. We invite companies to review available data and estimates, but we do not accept data shared by companies that has not been disclosed to the public.



## Coverage

The MSCI SDG Methodology universe is determined by companies' inclusion in all the coverage universes for each relevant MSCI proprietary data set. These include MSCI Sustainable Impact Metrics, MSCI Business Involvement Screening, MSCI ESG Ratings, MSCI ESG Metrics, and MSCI ESG Controversies. The coverage universe for each dataset is provided in the respective methodology documents.<sup>8</sup>

# **SDG Alignment Methodology by SDG**

All goal and target descriptions in this section are cited directly from the Sustainable Development Goals Knowledge Platform.<sup>9</sup> The data points in the right column are evaluated to determine scores and assessments. Where "N/A" is displayed, no data points are assessed for that category.

## SDG 1: No Poverty

End poverty in all its forms everywhere

#### SDG 1 Targets:

1.1 By 2030, eradicate extreme poverty for all people everywhere, currently measured as people living on less than \$1.25 a day

1.2 By 2030, reduce at least by half the proportion of men, women and children of all ages living in poverty in all its dimensions according to national definitions

1.3 Implement nationally appropriate social protection systems and measures for all, including floors, and by 2030 achieve substantial coverage of the poor and the vulnerable

1.4 By 2030, ensure that all men and women, in particular the poor and the vulnerable, have equal rights to economic resources, as well as access to basic services, ownership and control over land and other forms of property, inheritance, natural resources, appropriate new technology and financial services, including microfinance

1.5 By 2030, build the resilience of the poor and those in vulnerable situations and reduce their exposure and vulnerability to climate-related extreme events and other economic, social and environmental shocks and disasters

1.a Ensure significant mobilization of resources from a variety of sources, including through enhanced development cooperation, in order to provide adequate and predictable means for developing countries, in particular least developed countries, to implement programs and policies to end poverty in all its dimensions

1.b Create sound policy frameworks at the national, regional and international levels, based on pro-poor and gendersensitive development strategies, to support accelerated investment in poverty eradication actions

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>8</sup> See ESG Ratings Process documents, available here <u>https://www.msci.com/esg-and-climate-methodologies</u>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>9</sup> All targets and definitions are taken directly from the Sustainable Development Goals Knowledge Platform (United Nations n.d.b).



Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	<ul> <li>Nutrition</li> <li>Major disease treatment</li> <li>Sanitation</li> <li>Affordable real estate</li> <li>Small and medium-sized enterprise (SME) finance</li> <li>Education</li> <li>Connectivity</li> </ul>
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	- Predatory lending
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	<ul> <li>Evidence of philanthropic programs</li> <li>Evidence of fair wage practices</li> <li>Commitment to internationally recognized labor conventions</li> <li>High employment provider (i.e., &gt; 100,000 employees)</li> </ul>
Metrics indicating negative impact	Controversies related to the following: Labor: Labor working conditions in operations or supply chain Child or forced labor in operations or supply chain Employee or labor discrimination in operations or supply chain Collective-bargaining-related issues in operations Human rights: Human rights issues with local communities or indigenous populations Restriction of civil liberties; censorship or surveillance Human rights issues in disputed territories Customers: Restricted customer access to products or services (e.g., restricting customer access to housing, healthcare, red-lining, etc.) Anticompetitive practices Predatory billing, fraud or marketing Marketing safety concerns or misleading marketing Product safety or quality issues Governance: Bribery, fraud, corruption or unethical conduct Controversial investments Money laundering Export/import violations Tax or subsidy violations
Performance metrics	I ax or subsidy violations  N/A





## SDG 2: Zero Hunger

End hunger, achieve food security and improved nutrition, and promote sustainable agriculture

#### SDG 2 Targets:

2.1 By 2030, end hunger and ensure access by all people, in particular the poor and people in vulnerable situations, including infants, to safe, nutritious and sufficient food all year round

2.2 By 2030, end all forms of malnutrition, including achieving, by 2025, the internationally agreed targets on stunting and wasting in children under 5 years of age, and address the nutritional needs of adolescent girls, pregnant and lactating women and older persons

2.3 By 2030, double the agricultural productivity and incomes of small-scale food producers, in particular women, indigenous peoples, family farmers, pastoralists and fishers, including through secure and equal access to land, other productive resources and inputs, knowledge, financial services, markets and opportunities for value addition and non-farm employment

2.4 By 2030, ensure sustainable food production systems and implement resilient agricultural practices that increase productivity and production, that help maintain ecosystems, that strengthen capacity for adaptation to climate change, extreme weather, drought, flooding and other disasters and that progressively improve land and soil quality

2.5 By 2020, maintain the genetic diversity of seeds, cultivated plants and farmed and domesticated animals and their related wild species, including through soundly managed and diversified seed and plant banks at the national, regional and international levels, and promote access to and fair and equitable sharing of benefits arising from the utilization of genetic resources and associated traditional knowledge, as internationally agreed

2.a Increase investment, including through enhanced international cooperation, in rural infrastructure, agricultural research and extension services, technology development and plant and livestock gene banks in order to enhance agricultural productive capacity in developing countries, in particular least developed countries

2.b Correct and prevent trade restrictions and distortions in world agricultural markets, including through the parallel elimination of all forms of agricultural export subsidies and all export measures with equivalent effect, in accordance with the mandate of the Doha Development Round

2.c Adopt measures to ensure the proper functioning of food commodity markets and their derivatives and facilitate timely access to market information, including on food reserves, in order to help limit extreme food price volatility

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	- Nutrition - Sustainable agriculture
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	N/A
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	Water-efficiency programs by food product and food retail companies in their operations and in their supply chain
Metrics indicating negative impact	Controversies related to the following: Environment:



	<ul> <li>Toxic releases to land or water, including oil spills, pesticides, persistent organic pollutants and operational waste</li> <li>Biodiversity issues including land use, logging and endangered species</li> <li>Water stress or impacts on marine biodiversity</li> <li>Environmental issues with the supply chain, packaging material and waste</li> <li>Labor: <ul> <li>Labor working conditions in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Health and safety issues in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Child or forced labor in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Employee or labor discrimination in operations</li> </ul> </li> <li>Human rights: <ul> <li>Human rights related issues with local communities or indigenous populations</li> </ul> </li> <li>Customers: <ul> <li>Chemical safety issues faced by customers</li> </ul> </li> <li>Note that all labor and human rights controversies, and some environmental and customer controversies, are considered only for food distributors, food retail, hypermarkets &amp; super centers, agricultural products, packaged foods &amp; meats and restaurant companies</li> </ul>
Performance metrics	N/A



## SDG 3: Good Health & Well-Being

Ensure healthy lives and promote well-being for all at all ages

#### SDG 3 Targets:

3.1 By 2030, reduce the global maternal mortality ratio to less than 70 per 100,000 live births

3.2 By 2030, end preventable deaths of newborns and children under 5 years of age, with all countries aiming to reduce neonatal mortality to at least as low as 12 per 1,000 live births and under-5 mortality to at least as low as 25 per 1,000 live births

3.3 By 2030, end the epidemics of AIDS, tuberculosis, malaria and neglected tropical diseases and combat hepatitis, water-borne diseases and other communicable diseases

3.4 By 2030, reduce by one third premature mortality from non-communicable diseases through prevention and treatment and promote mental health and well-being

3.5 Strengthen the prevention and treatment of substance abuse, including narcotic drug abuse and harmful use of alcohol

3.6 By 2020, halve the number of global deaths and injuries from road traffic accidents

3.7 By 2030, ensure universal access to sexual and reproductive health-care services, including for family planning, information and education, and the integration of reproductive health into national strategies and programs

3.8 Achieve universal health coverage, including financial risk protection, access to quality essential health-care services and access to safe, effective, quality and affordable essential medicines and vaccines for all

3.9 By 2030, substantially reduce the number of deaths and illnesses from hazardous chemicals and air, water and soil pollution and contamination

3.a Strengthen the implementation of the World Health Organization Framework Convention on Tobacco Control in all countries, as appropriate

3.b Support the research and development of vaccines and medicines for the communicable and non-communicable diseases that primarily affect developing countries, provide access to affordable essential medicines and vaccines, in accordance with the Doha Declaration on the TRIPS Agreement and Public Health, which affirms the right of developing countries to use to the full the provisions in the Agreement on Trade-Related Aspects of Intellectual Property Rights regarding flexibilities to protect public health, and, in particular, provide access to medicines for all

3.c Substantially increase health financing and the recruitment, development, training and retention of the health workforce in developing countries, especially in least developed countries and small island developing States

3.d Strengthen the capacity of all countries, in particular developing countries, for early warning, risk reduction and management of national and global health risks





Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	<ul> <li>Conventional pollution control</li> <li>Low-toxicity &amp; volatile-organic-compound products</li> <li>Major disease treatment</li> <li>Contraceptives</li> <li>Sanitation</li> </ul>
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	- Tobacco
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	N/A
Metrics indicating negative impact	<ul> <li>Controversies related to the following:</li> <li>Labor: <ul> <li>Labor working conditions in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Health and safety issues in operations or supply chain</li> </ul> </li> <li>Human rights: <ul> <li>Human rights related issues with local communities or indigenous populations</li> </ul> </li> <li>Customers: <ul> <li>Product safety or quality issues</li> <li>Chemical safety issues faced by customers, including issues faced due to pesticides or persistent organic pollutants</li> <li>Marketing safety concerns or misleading marketing</li> <li>Anticompetitive practices</li> <li>Restriction on customer access to healthcare, or restricting access to people with disabilities</li> </ul> </li> <li>Note that some customer-related controversies are considered only for companies in the healthcare sector</li> </ul>
Performance metrics	N/A



## **SDG 4: Quality Education**

Ensure inclusive and equitable quality education and promote lifelong learning opportunities for all

#### SDG 4 Targets:

4.1 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys complete free, equitable and quality primary and secondary education leading to relevant and effective learning outcomes

4.2 By 2030, ensure that all girls and boys have access to quality early childhood development, care and pre-primary education so that they are ready for primary education

4.3 By 2030, ensure equal access for all women and men to affordable and quality technical, vocational and tertiary education, including university

4.4 By 2030, substantially increase the number of youth and adults who have relevant skills, including technical and vocational skills, for employment, decent jobs and entrepreneurship

4.5 By 2030, eliminate gender disparities in education and ensure equal access to all levels of education and vocational training for the vulnerable, including persons with disabilities, indigenous peoples and children in vulnerable situations

4.6 By 2030, ensure that all youth and a substantial proportion of adults, both men and women, achieve literacy and numeracy

4.7 By 2030, ensure that all learners acquire the knowledge and skills needed to promote sustainable development, including, among others, through education for sustainable development and sustainable lifestyles, human rights, gender equality, promotion of a culture of peace and non-violence, global citizenship and appreciation of cultural diversity and of culture's contribution to sustainable development

4.a Build and upgrade education facilities that are child, disability and gender sensitive and provide safe, non-violent, inclusive and effective learning environments for all

4.b By 2020, substantially expand globally the number of scholarships available to developing countries, in particular least developed countries, small island developing States and African countries, for enrolment in higher education, including vocational training and information and communications technology, technical, engineering and scientific programmes, in developed countries and other developing countries

4.c By 2030, substantially increase the supply of qualified teachers, including through international cooperation for teacher training in developing countries, especially least developed countries and small island developing States

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	- Education
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	N/A
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	- Providing professional training and leadership development
Metrics indicating negative impact	<ul> <li>Controversies related to the following:</li> <li>Labor: <ul> <li>Gender discrimination or gender harassment</li> <li>Child or forced labor in operations or supply chain</li> </ul> </li> </ul>



	<ul> <li>Employee or labor discrimination in operations or supply chain Customers:         <ul> <li>Product safety or quality issues in education services</li> <li>Restriction on customer access to information and communication</li> <li>Customer discrimination or restriction on the basis of disabilities</li> </ul> </li> <li>Note that some customer-related controversies are considered only for companies in the education sector</li> </ul>
Performance metrics	N/A



## SDG 5: Gender Equality

Achieve gender equality and empower all women and girls

#### SDG 5 Targets:

5.1 End all forms of discrimination against all women and girls everywhere

5.2 Eliminate all forms of violence against all women and girls in the public and private spheres, including trafficking and sexual and other types of exploitation

5.3 Eliminate all harmful practices, such as child, early and forced marriage and female genital mutilation

5.4 Recognize and value unpaid care and domestic work through the provision of public services, infrastructure and social protection policies and the promotion of shared responsibility within the household and the family as nationally appropriate

5.5 Ensure women's full and effective participation and equal opportunities for leadership at all levels of decisionmaking in political, economic and public life

5.6 Ensure universal access to sexual and reproductive health and reproductive rights as agreed in accordance with the Programme of Action of the International Conference on Population and Development and the Beijing Platform for Action and the outcome documents of their review conferences

5.a Undertake reforms to give women equal rights to economic resources, as well as access to ownership and control over land and other forms of property, financial services, inheritance and natural resources, in accordance with national laws

5.b Enhance the use of enabling technology, in particular information and communications technology, to promote the empowerment of women

5.c Adopt and strengthen sound policies and enforceable legislation for the promotion of gender equality and the empowerment of all women and girls at all levels

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	- Education - Contraceptives
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	N/A
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	<ul> <li>Programs for workforce diversity and diversity policies</li> <li>Percentage of women in the workforce, executive management and senior management are all over 20%</li> <li>Percentage of women on the board is over 30%</li> <li>A minimum of one woman sits on the board</li> </ul>
Metrics indicating negative impact	<ul> <li>Controversies related to the following:</li> <li>Labor:         <ul> <li>Gender discrimination or gender harassment</li> <li>Forced labor in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Employee or labor discrimination in operations or supply chain</li> </ul> </li> <li>Customers:         <ul> <li>Customer discrimination</li> </ul> </li> </ul>





Performance metrics	- Trend in growth of percentage of women employees in the workforce
	over the past 3 years - Trend in growth of percentage of women in senior management over
	the past 3 years



## SDG 6: Clean Water and Sanitation

Ensure availability and sustainable management of water and sanitation for all

#### SDG 6 Targets:

6.1 By 2030, achieve universal and equitable access to safe and affordable drinking water for all

6.2 By 2030, achieve access to adequate and equitable sanitation and hygiene for all and end open defecation, paying special attention to the needs of women and girls and those in vulnerable situations

6.3 By 2030, improve water quality by reducing pollution, eliminating dumping and minimizing release of hazardous chemicals and materials, halving the proportion of untreated wastewater and substantially increasing recycling and safe reuse globally

6.4 By 2030, substantially increase water-use efficiency across all sectors and ensure sustainable withdrawals and supply of freshwater to address water scarcity and substantially reduce the number of people suffering from water scarcity

6.5 By 2030, implement integrated water resources management at all levels, including through transboundary cooperation as appropriate

6.6 By 2020, protect and restore water-related ecosystems, including mountains, forests, wetlands, rivers, aquifers and lakes

6.a By 2030, expand international cooperation and capacity-building support to developing countries in water- and sanitation-related activities and programmes, including water harvesting, desalination, water efficiency, wastewater treatment, recycling and reuse technologies

6.b Support and strengthen the participation of local communities in improving water and sanitation management

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	- Sustainable water - Sanitation - Sustainable agriculture
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	N/A
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	<ul> <li>Water consumption or withdrawal targets</li> <li>Water reduction programs in operations</li> <li>Water risk monitoring and measurement programs</li> <li>Evidence of recycling water</li> </ul>
Metrics indicating negative impact	<ul> <li>Over 20% of operations<sup>10</sup> are in business activities that are typically water-intensive</li> <li>Over 20% of revenue is derived from business activities that are typically water-polluting</li> <li>Over 20% of revenue is derived from pesticides or fertilizers</li> <li>Controversies related to the following:</li> <li>Environment:</li> </ul>

<sup>&</sup>lt;sup>10</sup> The percentage of operations is typically calculated as the company-reported asset value of the segment divided by the total asset value. In certain cases, industry-specific metrics are used to calculate the percentage of operations, such as power generation, production volume, or reserve value. In cases where neither assets nor a relevant industry-specific proxy is available, the percentage is calculated based on revenue.



	<ul> <li>Toxic releases to land or water, including pesticides, persistent organic pollutants and operational waste</li> <li>Water stress</li> </ul>
	Customers:
	<ul> <li>Chemical safety issues linked to pesticides or persistent organic pollutants</li> </ul>
	Human rights:
	<ul> <li>Human rights violations by environmental impacts on</li> </ul>
	communities
Performance metrics	- Trend in freshwater-withdrawal intensity



## SDG 7: Affordable and Clean Energy

Ensure access to affordable, reliable, sustainable and modern energy for all

#### SDG 7 Targets:

7.1 By 2030, ensure universal access to affordable, reliable and modern energy services

7.2 By 2030, increase substantially the share of renewable energy in the global energy mix

7.3 By 2030, double the global rate of improvement in energy efficiency

7.a By 2030, enhance international cooperation to facilitate access to clean energy research and technology, including renewable energy, energy efficiency and advanced and cleaner fossil-fuel technology, and promote investment in energy infrastructure and clean energy technology

7.b By 2030, expand infrastructure and upgrade technology for supplying modern and sustainable energy services for all in developing countries, in particular least developed countries, small island developing States and landlocked developing countries, in accordance with their respective programmes of support

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	<ul> <li>Alternative energy generation &amp; turbine manufacturing, including hydropower</li> <li>Demand-side management</li> <li>Smart grid</li> </ul>
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	<ul> <li>Electric power generation from fossil fuels</li> <li>Oil &amp; gas exploration and production or coal mining</li> <li>Fossil fuel turbines</li> </ul>
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	<ul> <li>Targets for carbon reduction or energy-efficiency enhancement</li> <li>Using energy from renewable sources</li> </ul>
Metrics indicating negative impact	<ul> <li>Ownership of fossil fuel reserves</li> <li>Over 20% of operations are in business activities that are typically carbon-intensive</li> <li>Controversies related to the following:</li> <li>Environment: <ul> <li>Energy and climate change</li> </ul> </li> <li>Customers: <ul> <li>Restricted access to products and services by utilities</li> <li>Predatory fraud and billing by utilities</li> <li>Product and service safety/quality by utilities</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Performance metrics	- Trend in energy consumption intensity



## SDG 8: Decent Work and Economic Growth

Promote sustained, inclusive and sustainable economic growth, full and productive employment and decent work for all

#### SDG 8 Targets:

8.1 Sustain per capita economic growth in accordance with national circumstances and, in particular, at least 7 per cent gross domestic product growth per annum in the least developed countries

8.10 Strengthen the capacity of domestic financial institutions to encourage and expand access to banking, insurance and financial services for all

8.2 Achieve higher levels of economic productivity through diversification, technological upgrading and innovation, including through a focus on high-value added and labour-intensive sectors

8.3 Promote development-oriented policies that support productive activities, decent job creation, entrepreneurship, creativity and innovation, and encourage the formalization and growth of micro-, small- and medium-sized enterprises, including through access to financial services

8.4 Improve progressively, through 2030, global resource efficiency in consumption and production and endeavour to decouple economic growth from environmental degradation, in accordance with the 10-Year Framework of Programmes on Sustainable Consumption and Production, with developed countries taking the lead

8.5 By 2030, achieve full and productive employment and decent work for all women and men, including for young people and persons with disabilities, and equal pay for work of equal value

8.6 By 2020, substantially reduce the proportion of youth not in employment, education or training

8.7 Take immediate and effective measures to eradicate forced labour, end modern slavery and human trafficking and secure the prohibition and elimination of the worst forms of child labour, including recruitment and use of child soldiers, and by 2025 end child labour in all its forms

8.8 Protect labour rights and promote safe and secure working environments for all workers, including migrant workers, in particular women migrants, and those in precarious employment

8.9 By 2030, devise and implement policies to promote sustainable tourism that creates jobs and promotes local culture and products

8.a Increase Aid for Trade support for developing countries, in particular least developed countries, including through the Enhanced Integrated Framework for Trade-related Technical Assistance to Least Developed Countries

8.b By 2020, develop and operationalize a global strategy for youth employment and implement the Global Jobs Pact of the International Labour Organization



Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and	- Education
services with positive	- SME finance
impact	- Connectivity
Revenue from products and	N/A
services with negative	
impact	
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive	- Provides professional leadership development
impact	- Programs to facilitate workforce diversity
	- Evidence of fair wage practices
	- Monitors employee satisfaction
	- Commitment to internationally recognized labor conventions
	- Evidence of philanthropic investments
Metrics indicating negative	- Strikes or lock outs in operations
impact	- Controversies related to the following:
	Labor:
	<ul> <li>Labor working conditions in operations or supply chain</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Child or forced labor in operations or supply chain</li> </ul>
	Employee or labor discrimination in operations or supply chain
	<ul> <li>Employee or labor health and safety in operations or supply chain</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Gender discrimination or gender harassment</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>50% or more employee or labor layoffs</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Collective-bargaining-related issues in operations</li> </ul>
	Customers:
	<ul> <li>Predatory marketing practices</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Predatory fraud and billing</li> </ul>
	Human rights:
	<ul> <li>Impacts on communities and human rights concerns</li> </ul>
	Governance:
	Controversial investments
	Money laundering
	Export/import violations
	Tax or subsidy violations
	Political influence
Performance metrics	N/A



## SDG 9: Industry, Innovation and Infrastructure

Build resilient infrastructure, promote inclusive and sustainable industrialization and foster innovation

#### SDG 9 Targets:

9.1 Develop quality, reliable, sustainable and resilient infrastructure, including regional and transborder infrastructure, to support economic development and human well-being, with a focus on affordable and equitable access for all

9.2 Promote inclusive and sustainable industrialization and, by 2030, significantly raise industry's share of employment and gross domestic product, in line with national circumstances, and double its share in least developed countries

9.3 Increase the access of small-scale industrial and other enterprises, in particular in developing countries, to financial services, including affordable credit, and their integration into value chains and markets

9.4 By 2030, upgrade infrastructure and retrofit industries to make them sustainable, with increased resource-use efficiency and greater adoption of clean and environmentally sound technologies and industrial processes, with all countries taking action in accordance with their respective capabilities

9.5 Enhance scientific research, upgrade the technological capabilities of industrial sectors in all countries, in particular developing countries, including, by 2030, encouraging innovation and substantially increasing the number of research and development workers per 1 million people and public and private research and development spending

9.a Facilitate sustainable and resilient infrastructure development in developing countries through enhanced financial, technological and technical support to African countries, least developed countries, landlocked developing countries and small island developing States

9.b Support domestic technology development, research and innovation in developing countries, including by ensuring a conducive policy environment for, inter alia, industrial diversification and value addition to commodities

9.c Significantly increase access to information and communications technology and strive to provide universal and affordable access to the Internet in least developed countries by 2020

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and	- Pollution prevention
services with positive impact	<ul> <li>Alternative energy generation</li> <li>Clean transport infrastructure</li> </ul>
impact	- Energy-efficient industrial automation
	- Demand-side management
	- Passenger transport & freight
	- SME finance - Connectivity
Revenue from products and	N/A
services with negative	N/A
impact	
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive	- Programs to reduce emissions in core operations
impact	- Conducting regular environmental audits in operations
Metrics indicating negative	- Controversies related to the following:
impact	Environment:
	<ul> <li>Energy and climate change</li> </ul>



	<ul> <li>Governance: <ul> <li>Controversial investments</li> </ul> </li> <li>Human rights: <ul> <li>Impacts on local and indigenous communities</li> </ul> </li> <li>Customers: <ul> <li>Restriction on customer access to products or services (e.g., restricting customer access to housing, healthcare, finance etc.)</li> <li>Anticompetitive practices</li> <li>Predatory billing, fraud or marketing</li> <li>Marketing safety concerns or misleading marketing</li> <li>Product safety or quality issues, particularly with relation to structural integrity and transport infrastructure</li> <li>Chemical safety of products on customers, particularly while using pesticides or persistent organic pollutants</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Performance metrics	- Trend in energy consumption intensity



## SDG 10: Reduced Inequalities

Reduce inequality among and within countries

#### SDG 10 Targets:

10.1 By 2030, progressively achieve and sustain income growth of the bottom 40 per cent of the population at a rate higher than the national average

10.2 By 2030, empower and promote the social, economic and political inclusion of all, irrespective of age, sex, disability, race, ethnicity, origin, religion or economic or other status

10.3 Ensure equal opportunity and reduce inequalities of outcome, including by eliminating discriminatory laws, policies and practices and promoting appropriate legislation, policies and action in this regard

10.4 Adopt policies, especially fiscal, wage and social protection policies, and progressively achieve greater equality

10.5 Improve the regulation and monitoring of global financial markets and institutions and strengthen the implementation of such regulations

10.6 Ensure enhanced representation and voice for developing countries in decision-making in global international economic and financial institutions in order to deliver more effective, credible, accountable and legitimate institutions

10.7 Facilitate orderly, safe, regular and responsible migration and mobility of people, including through the implementation of planned and well-managed migration policies

10.a Implement the principle of special and differential treatment for developing countries, in particular least developed countries, in accordance with World Trade Organization agreements

10.b Encourage official development assistance and financial flows, including foreign direct investment, to States where the need is greatest, in particular least developed countries, African countries, small island developing States and landlocked developing countries, in accordance with their national plans and programmes

10.c By 2030, reduce to less than 3 per cent the transaction costs of migrant remittances and eliminate remittance corridors with costs higher than 5 percent

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and	- Education
services with positive	- SME finance
impact	- Connectivity
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	- Predatory lending
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive	- Collective bargaining agreements
impact	- Programs to facilitate workforce diversity
	- Workforce diversity policy
	- Commitments to external mandates to protect human rights
	- Commitments to ethics and anti-corruption mandates
	- UN Global Compact signatory
	<ul> <li>Human rights policy or evidence of commitment to an external standard</li> </ul>
Metrics indicating negative	- Long-term pay performance versus peers
impact	- Controversies related to the following:
	Labor:
	<ul> <li>Labor working conditions in operations or supply chain</li> </ul>



	<ul> <li>Child or forced labor in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Employee or labor discrimination in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Collective-bargaining-related issues in operations</li> <li>Gender discrimination or harassment</li> <li>Human rights: <ul> <li>Human-rights-related issues with local communities or indigenous populations</li> <li>Restriction of civil liberties; censorship or surveillance</li> <li>Human rights issues in disputed territories</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
	Customers:
	<ul> <li>Restriction on customer access to products or services (e.g., restricting customer access to housing, healthcare, information and communication)</li> <li>Predatory billing, fraud or marketing</li> </ul>
	Governance:
	<ul> <li>Bribery, fraud, corruption or unethical conduct</li> <li>Money laundering</li> <li>Export/import violations</li> <li>Tax or subsidy violations</li> <li>Political influence</li> </ul>
Performance metrics	N/A



## SDG 11: Sustainable Cities and Communities

Make cities and human settlements inclusive, safe, resilient and sustainable

#### SDG 11 Targets:

11.1 By 2030, ensure access for all to adequate, safe and affordable housing and basic services and upgrade slums

11.2 By 2030, provide access to safe, affordable, accessible and sustainable transport systems for all, improving road safety, notably by expanding public transport, with special attention to the needs of those in vulnerable situations, women, children, persons with disabilities and older persons

11.3 By 2030, enhance inclusive and sustainable urbanization and capacity for participatory, integrated and sustainable human settlement planning and management in all countries

11.4 Strengthen efforts to protect and safeguard the world's cultural and natural heritage

11.5 By 2030, significantly reduce the number of deaths and the number of people affected and substantially decrease the direct economic losses relative to global gross domestic product caused by disasters, including water-related disasters, with a focus on protecting the poor and people in vulnerable situations

11.6 By 2030, reduce the adverse per capita environmental impact of cities, including by paying special attention to air quality and municipal and other waste management

11.7 By 2030, provide universal access to safe, inclusive and accessible, green and public spaces, in particular for women and children, older persons and persons with disabilities

11.a Support positive economic, social and environmental links between urban, peri-urban and rural areas by strengthening national and regional development planning

11.b By 2020, substantially increase the number of cities and human settlements adopting and implementing integrated policies and plans towards inclusion, resource efficiency, mitigation and adaptation to climate change, resilience to disasters, and develop and implement, in line with the Sendai Framework for Disaster Risk Reduction 2015–2030, holistic disaster risk management at all levels

11.c Support least developed countries, including through financial and technical assistance, in building sustainable and resilient buildings utilizing local materials

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and	- Pollution prevention
services with positive	- Demand-side management
impact	- Smart grid
	- Clean transport infrastructure
	- Light-emitting diode/compact fluorescent lamp lighting
	- Insulation
	- Green building
	- Affordable real estate
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	N/A
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	- Offering the customer a green power option
Metrics indicating negative impact	- Controversies related to the following:



	<ul> <li>Human rights:</li> <li>Human-rights-related issues with local communities or indigenous populations</li> <li>Restriction of civil liberties; censorship or surveillance</li> <li>Human rights issues in disputed or controversial territories</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Customers:         <ul> <li>Restriction on customer access to products or services (e.g., restricting customer access to housing, healthcare, information and communication)</li> <li>Product &amp; service safety, including structural safety and safety during transport</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
	Governance: <ul> <li>Controversial investments</li> <li>Political influence</li> </ul>
Performance metrics	N/A





## SDG 12: Responsible Consumption and Production

Ensure sustainable consumption and production patterns

#### SDG 12 Targets:

12.1 Implement the 10-Year Framework of Programmes on Sustainable Consumption and Production Patterns, all countries taking action, with developed countries taking the lead, taking into account the development and capabilities of developing countries

12.2 By 2030, achieve the sustainable management and efficient use of natural resources

12.3 By 2030, halve per capita global food waste at the retail and consumer levels and reduce food losses along production and supply chains, including post-harvest losses

12.4 By 2020, achieve the environmentally sound management of chemicals and all wastes throughout their life cycle, in accordance with agreed international frameworks, and significantly reduce their release to air, water and soil in order to minimize their adverse impacts on human health and the environment

12.5 By 2030, substantially reduce waste generation through prevention, reduction, recycling and reuse

12.6 Encourage companies, especially large and transnational companies, to adopt sustainable practices and to integrate sustainability information into their reporting cycle

12.7 Promote public procurement practices that are sustainable, in accordance with national policies and priorities

12.8 By 2030, ensure that people everywhere have the relevant information and awareness for sustainable development and lifestyles in harmony with nature

12.a Support developing countries to strengthen their scientific and technological capacity to move towards more sustainable patterns of consumption and production

12.b Develop and implement tools to monitor sustainable development impacts for sustainable tourism that creates jobs and promotes local culture and products

12.c Rationalize inefficient fossil-fuel subsidies that encourage wasteful consumption by removing market distortions, in accordance with national circumstances, including by restructuring taxation and phasing out those harmful subsidies, where they exist, to reflect their environmental impacts, taking fully into account the specific needs and conditions of developing countries and minimizing the possible adverse impacts on their development in a manner that protects the poor and the affected communities

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	- Alternative energy
	- Carbon and energy efficiency
	- Green building
	- Pollution prevention
	- Sustainable water
	- Sustainable agriculture
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	- Electric power generation from fossil fuels
	- Oil & gas exploration and production or coal mining
	- Fossil-fuel turbines
Operational Alignment	
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	- Using renewable energy in operations
	<ul> <li>Water-efficiency programs in operations or supply chain, or evidence of recycling water</li> </ul>
Metrics indicating negative impact	- Ownership of fossil-fuel reserves

MSCI	MSCI SDG ALIGNMENT METHO JANUA
	<ul> <li>Over 20% of operations are in carbon-intensive activities</li> <li>Over 20% of revenue is from products typically associated with high packaging waste</li> <li>Over 20% of revenue is from businesses that are typically reliant on high-concern chemicals</li> <li>Controversies related to the following:</li> <li>Environment: <ul> <li>Toxic releases to air, land or water, including oil spills, pesticides, persistent organic pollutants and operational waste</li> <li>Biodiversity issues including land use, logging and endangered species</li> <li>Water stress or impacts on marine biodiversity</li> <li>Environmental issues with supply chains, packaging material and waste</li> <li>Energy and climate change</li> </ul> </li> <li>Human-rights-related issues due to environmental mishaps in local communities</li> <li>Customers: <ul> <li>Chemical safety, including concerns related to pesticides or persistent organic pollutants</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Performance metrics	Controversial investments     Trend of carbon-emission intensity     Trend of freshwater-withdrawal intensity


# SDG 13: Climate Action

Take urgent action to combat climate change and its impacts

### SDG 13 Targets:

13.1 Strengthen resilience and adaptive capacity to climate-related hazards and natural disasters in all countries

13.2 Integrate climate change measures into national policies, strategies and planning

13.3 Improve education, awareness-raising and human and institutional capacity on climate change mitigation, adaptation, impact reduction and early warning

13.a Implement the commitment undertaken by developed-country parties to the United Nations Framework Convention on Climate Change to a goal of mobilizing jointly \$100 billion annually by 2020 from all sources to address the needs of developing countries in the context of meaningful mitigation actions and transparency on implementation and fully operationalize the Green Climate Fund through its capitalization as soon as possible

13.b Promote mechanisms for raising capacity for effective climate change-related planning and management in least developed countries and small island developing States, including focusing on women, youth and local and marginalized communities

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive	- Alternative energy, including hydropower
	- Demand-side management
impact	- Smart grid
	- Turbine manufacturing for alternative energy and hydropower
Revenue from products and	- Electric power generation from fossil fuels
services with negative	- Oil & gas exploration and production or coal mining
impact	- Fossil fuel turbines
Operational Alignment	
	Town to few costs on an an art offician an improvement
Metrics indicating positive	- Targets for carbon- or energy-efficiency improvement
impact	- Programs to reduce emissions in core operations
Metrics indicating negative	- Ownership of fossil fuel reserves
impact	- Over 20% of operations are in business activities that are typically carbon-intensive
	- Controversies related to the following:
	Environment:
	Energy and climate change
Performance metrics	- Trend of carbon-emission intensity
	- Trend of carbon-emission intensity relative to peers



# SDG 14: Life Below Water

Conserve and sustainably use the oceans, seas and marine resources for sustainable development

#### SDG 14 Targets:

14.1 By 2025, prevent and significantly reduce marine pollution of all kinds, in particular from land-based activities, including marine debris and nutrient pollution

14.2 By 2020, sustainably manage and protect marine and coastal ecosystems to avoid significant adverse impacts, including by strengthening their resilience, and take action for their restoration in order to achieve healthy and productive oceans

14.3 Minimize and address the impacts of ocean acidification, including through enhanced scientific cooperation at all levels

14.4 By 2020, effectively regulate harvesting and end overfishing, illegal, unreported and unregulated fishing and destructive fishing practices and implement science-based management plans, in order to restore fish stocks in the shortest time feasible, at least to levels that can produce maximum sustainable yield as determined by their biological characteristics

14.5 By 2020, conserve at least 10 per cent of coastal and marine areas, consistent with national and international law and based on the best available scientific information

14.6 By 2020, prohibit certain forms of fisheries subsidies which contribute to overcapacity and overfishing, eliminate subsidies that contribute to illegal, unreported and unregulated fishing and refrain from introducing new such subsidies, recognizing that appropriate and effective special and differential treatment for developing and least developed countries should be an integral part of the World Trade Organization fisheries subsidies negotiation

14.7 By 2030, increase the economic benefits to small island developing States and least developed countries from the sustainable use of marine resources, including through sustainable management of fisheries, aquaculture and tourism

14.a Increase scientific knowledge, develop research capacity and transfer marine technology, taking into account the Intergovernmental Oceanographic Commission Criteria and Guidelines on the Transfer of Marine Technology, in order to improve ocean health and to enhance the contribution of marine biodiversity to the development of developing countries, in particular small island developing States and least developed countries

14.b Provide access for small-scale artisanal fishers to marine resources and markets

14.c Enhance the conservation and sustainable use of oceans and their resources by implementing international law as reflected in the United Nations Convention on the Law of the Sea, which provides the legal framework for the conservation and sustainable use of oceans and their resources, as recalled in paragraph 158 of "The future we want"

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	- Environmental remediation - Wastewater treatment
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	- Plastic materials
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	- Sourcing certified sustainable seafood



Metrics indicating negative impact	<ul> <li>Over 20% of revenue is from offshore drilling</li> <li>Over 20% of revenue is from fishing and aquaculture</li> <li>Over 20% of revenue is from business activities typically associated with high levels of packaging waste</li> <li>Over 20% of revenue is from marine transport, including cruises and fractional transport.</li> </ul>
	freight transport - Controversies related to the following:
	Environment:
	<ul> <li>Marine biodiversity</li> <li>Oil spills</li> <li>Water stress</li> <li>Operational waste</li> <li>Packaging material and waste</li> <li>Pesticides or persistent organic pollutants</li> <li>Human rights:</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Human-rights-related issues due to environmental mishaps in local communities</li> </ul>
	Customers:
	<ul> <li>Chemical safety, including concerns related to pesticides or persistent organic pollutants</li> </ul>
Performance metrics	N/A



## SDG 15: Life on Land

Protect, restore and promote sustainable use of terrestrial ecosystems, sustainably manage forests, combat desertification, and halt and reverse land degradation and halt biodiversity loss

### SDG 15 Targets:

15.1 By 2020, ensure the conservation, restoration and sustainable use of terrestrial and inland freshwater ecosystems and their services, in particular forests, wetlands, mountains and drylands, in line with obligations under international agreements

15.2 By 2020, promote the implementation of sustainable management of all types of forests, halt deforestation, restore degraded forests and substantially increase afforestation and reforestation globally

15.3 By 2030, combat desertification, restore degraded land and soil, including land affected by desertification, drought and floods, and strive to achieve a land degradation-neutral world

15.4 By 2030, ensure the conservation of mountain ecosystems, including their biodiversity, in order to enhance their capacity to provide benefits that are essential for sustainable development

15.5 Take urgent and significant action to reduce the degradation of natural habitats, halt the loss of biodiversity and, by 2020, protect and prevent the extinction of threatened species

15.6 Promote fair and equitable sharing of the benefits arising from the utilization of genetic resources and promote appropriate access to such resources, as internationally agreed

15.7 Take urgent action to end poaching and trafficking of protected species of flora and fauna and address both demand and supply of illegal wildlife products

15.8 By 2020, introduce measures to prevent the introduction and significantly reduce the impact of invasive alien species on land and water ecosystems and control or eradicate the priority species

15.9 By 2020, integrate ecosystem and biodiversity values into national and local planning, development processes, poverty reduction strategies and accounts

15.a Mobilize and significantly increase financial resources from all sources to conserve and sustainably use biodiversity and ecosystems

15.b Mobilize significant resources from all sources and at all levels to finance sustainable forest management and provide adequate incentives to developing countries to advance such management, including for conservation and reforestation

15.c Enhance global support for efforts to combat poaching and trafficking of protected species, including by increasing the capacity of local communities to pursue sustainable livelihood opportunities

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	- Environmental remediation
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	N/A
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	N/A



Metrics indicating negative impact	<ul> <li>Over 20% of operations are in business activities that typically produce high levels of toxic emissions and waste (e.g., mining)</li> <li>Over 20% of operations are in business activities that typically cause land and ecosystem disturbance (e.g., timber production, agriculture, oil sands)</li> <li>Controversies related to the following:</li> <li>Environment: <ul> <li>Electronic waste</li> <li>Packaging material and waste</li> <li>Toxic releases to air, land or water, including oil spills, pesticides, persistent organic pollutants and operational waste</li> <li>Biodiversity issues including land use, logging and endangered species</li> <li>Environmental issues with supply chains</li> </ul> </li> <li>Human rights: <ul> <li>Human-rights-related issues due to environmental mishaps in local communities and indigenous communities</li> </ul> </li> <li>Customers: <ul> <li>Chemical safety, including concerns related to pesticides or persistent organic pollutants</li> </ul> </li> </ul>
Performance metrics	N/A



## SDG 16: Peace, Justice and Strong Institutions

Promote peaceful and inclusive societies for sustainable development, provide access to justice for all and build effective, accountable and inclusive institutions at all levels

### SDG 16 Targets:

16.1 Significantly reduce all forms of violence and related death rates everywhere

16.2 End abuse, exploitation, trafficking and all forms of violence against and torture of children

16.3 Promote the rule of law at the national and international levels and ensure equal access to justice for all

16.4 By 2030, significantly reduce illicit financial and arms flows, strengthen the recovery and return of stolen assets and combat all forms of organized crime

16.5 Substantially reduce corruption and bribery in all their forms

16.6 Develop effective, accountable and transparent institutions at all levels

16.7 Ensure responsive, inclusive, participatory and representative decision-making at all levels

16.8 Broaden and strengthen the participation of developing countries in the institutions of global governance

16.9 By 2030, provide legal identity for all, including birth registration

16.10 Ensure public access to information and protect fundamental freedoms, in accordance with national legislation and international agreements

16.a Strengthen relevant national institutions, including through international cooperation, for building capacity at all levels, in particular in developing countries, to prevent violence and combat terrorism and crime

16.b Promote and enforce non-discriminatory laws and policies for sustainable development

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	N/A
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	- Nuclear weapons - Civilian firearms
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	<ul> <li>Regular audits of anti-corruption practices</li> <li>Regular audits of data security policies and systems</li> <li>Whistleblower protection policy</li> <li>Supplier collaboration and monitoring of anti-corruption practices</li> </ul>
Metrics indicating negative impact	<ul> <li>Significant vote against pay practices</li> <li>Controversies related to the following:</li> <li>Labor: <ul> <li>Labor working conditions in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Child or forced labor in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Employee or labor discrimination in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Collective-bargaining-related issues in operations</li> <li>Gender discrimination or harassment</li> <li>Kidnappings and attacks</li> </ul> </li> <li>Human rights:</li> </ul>



	<ul> <li>Generic weapons</li> <li>Human-rights-related issues with local communities or indigenous populations</li> <li>Restriction of civil liberties</li> <li>Human rights issues in disputed or controversial territories</li> </ul>
	<ul> <li>Restriction on customer access to products or services (e.g., restricting customer access to housing, healthcare, finance, etc.)</li> <li>Anticompetitive practices</li> <li>Predatory billing, fraud or marketing</li> <li>Marketing safety concerns or misleading marketing</li> <li>Privacy and data security</li> </ul>
	Governance:
	<ul> <li>Bribery, fraud, corruption or unethical conduct</li> <li>Political influence</li> <li>Money laundering</li> <li>Export/import violations</li> <li>Tax or subsidy violations</li> </ul>
Performance metrics	N/A



## SDG 17: Partnership for the Goals

Strengthen the means of implementation and revitalize the Global Partnership for Sustainable Development

### SDG 17 Targets:

17.1 Strengthen domestic resource mobilization, including through international support to developing countries, to improve domestic capacity for tax and other revenue collection

17.2 Developed countries to implement fully their official development assistance commitments, including the commitment by many developed countries to achieve the target of 0.7 per cent of gross national income for official development assistance (ODA/GNI) to developing countries and 0.15 to 0.20 per cent of ODA/GNI to least developed countries; ODA providers are encouraged to consider setting a target to provide at least 0.20 per cent of ODA/GNI to least developed countries

17.3 Mobilize additional financial resources for developing countries from multiple sources

17.4 Assist developing countries in attaining long-term debt sustainability through coordinated policies aimed at fostering debt financing, debt relief and debt restructuring, as appropriate, and address the external debt of highly indebted poor countries to reduce debt distress

17.5 Adopt and implement investment promotion regimes for least developed countries

17.6 Enhance North-South, South-South and triangular regional and international cooperation on and access to science, technology and innovation and enhance knowledge-sharing on mutually agreed terms, including through improved coordination among existing mechanisms, in particular at the United Nations level, and through a global technology facilitation mechanism

17.7 Promote the development, transfer, dissemination and diffusion of environmentally sound technologies to developing countries on favourable terms, including on concessional and preferential terms, as mutually agreed

17.8 Fully operationalize the technology bank and science, technology and innovation capacity-building mechanism for least developed countries by 2017 and enhance the use of enabling technology, in particular information and communications technology

17.9 Enhance international support for implementing effective and targeted capacity-building in developing countries to support national plans to implement all the Sustainable Development Goals, including through North-South, South-South and triangular cooperation

Data, monitoring and accountability

Multi-stakeholder partnerships

Policy and institutional coherence

17.10 Promote a universal, rules-based, open, non-discriminatory and equitable multilateral trading system under the World Trade Organization, including through the conclusion of negotiations under its Doha Development Agenda

17.11 Significantly increase the exports of developing countries, in particular with a view to doubling the least developed countries' share of global exports by 2020

17.12 Realize timely implementation of duty-free and quota-free market access on a lasting basis for all least developed countries, consistent with World Trade Organization decisions, including by ensuring that preferential rules of origin applicable to imports from least developed countries are transparent and simple, and contribute to facilitating market access

17.13 Enhance global macroeconomic stability, including through policy coordination and policy coherence

17.14 Enhance policy coherence for sustainable development

17.15 Respect each country's policy space and leadership to establish and implement policies for poverty eradication and sustainable development



17.16 Enhance the Global Partnership for Sustainable Development, complemented by multi-stakeholder partnerships that mobilize and share knowledge, expertise, technology and financial resources, to support the achievement of the Sustainable Development Goals in all countries, in particular developing countries

17.17 Encourage and promote effective public, public-private and civil society partnerships, building on the experience and resourcing strategies of partnerships

17.18 By 2020, enhance capacity-building support to developing countries, including for least developed countries and small island developing States, to increase significantly the availability of high-quality, timely and reliable data disaggregated by income, gender, age, race, ethnicity, migratory status, disability, geographic location and other characteristics relevant in national contexts

17.19 By 2030, build on existing initiatives to develop measurements of progress on sustainable development that complement gross domestic product, and support statistical capacity-building in developing countries

Product Alignment	
Revenue from products and services with positive impact	N/A
Revenue from products and services with negative impact	N/A
Operational Alignment	
Metrics indicating positive impact	<ul> <li>Commitments to external mandates to protect human rights</li> <li>Commitments to ethics and anti-corruption mandates</li> <li>UN Global Compact signatory</li> <li>Philanthropic investments that leverage the company's resources and expertise</li> <li>Human rights policy or evidence of commitment to an external standard</li> </ul>
Metrics indicating negative impact	<ul> <li>Estimated tax gap (the difference between the estimated effective tax rate and estimated statutory tax rate) is greater than 20%</li> <li>Controversies related to the following:</li> <li>Labor: <ul> <li>Labor working conditions in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Child or forced labor in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Employee or labor discrimination in operations or supply chain</li> <li>Gender discrimination or harassment</li> </ul> </li> <li>Human rights: <ul> <li>Generic weapons</li> <li>Human-rights-related issues with local communities or indigenous populations</li> <li>Restriction of civil liberties; censorship and surveillance</li> <li>Human rights issues in disputed or controversial territories</li> </ul> </li> <li>Customers: <ul> <li>Restriction of customer access to products or services (e.g., restricting customer access to housing, healthcare, finance etc.)</li> <li>Anticompetitive practices</li> </ul> </li> <li>Governance: <ul> <li>Bribery, fraud, corruption or unethical conduct</li> <li>Political influence</li> <li>Money laundering</li> <li>Export/import violations</li> </ul> </li> </ul>



Performance metrics N/A

© 2024 MSCI Inc. All rights reserved. Please refer to the disclaimer at the end of this document.





# References

- Eastman, Meggin Thwing, Paul Horrocks, Tansher Singh and Neeraj Kumar. 2018. Institutional Investing for the SDGs: A Joint Discussion Paper from MSCI and the OECD. MSCI. https://www.msci.com/documents/10199/239004/Institutional\_Investing\_for\_the\_SDGs.pdf
- MSCI. 2023. "MSCI ESG Metrics A Big Data Approach to ESG." Last modified January 2023. https://www.msci.com/esg-metrics.
- MSCI ESG Research. 2021. MSCI Sustainable Impact Metrics: Methodology. MSCI.
- MSCI ESG Research. 2022a. Business Involvement Screening Research Methodology. MSCI.
- MSCI ESG Research. 2022b. ESG Ratings Methodology. https://www.msci.com/esg-and-climate-methodologies.
- MSCI ESG Research. 2023. MSCI ESG Controversies and Global Norms Methodology. https://www.msci.com/esg-and-climate-methodologies.
- United Nations. n.d.a. "Sustainable Development Goals." Accessed January 17, 2023. https://www.un.org/sustainabledevelopment/sustainable-development-goals/.
- United Nations. n.d.b. "The 17 Goals." Accessed January 17, 2023. https://sdgs.un.org/goals.



# Appendix 1: Data updates and quality review

### Ongoing updates of data and scores

Generally, data is obtained on an ongoing basis. Companies are monitored on a systematic and ongoing basis, including daily monitoring of controversies and governance events. Updates to underlying data and scores do not in all cases lead to a change in SDG Net Alignment Scores or Assessments.

### Data quality review

MSCI

The MSCI SDG Alignment methodology is constructed based on data sets that are used in the MSCI Sustainable Impact Metrics, MSCI Business Involvement Screening, MSCI ESG Ratings, and MSCI ESG Controversies methodologies. The quality review, data update, and methodology governance processes for each of these is detailed in the respective methodology documents.

### Communication with corporate issuers

We are committed to transparent communication with corporate issuers in our coverage universe. For more details, please refer to the "Procedures for Corporate Issuer Interaction" document.

# **Appendix 2: Summary of methodology updates**

The ESG Methodology Committee (EMC) presides over the development and review of all MSCI ESG Research methodologies. Methodology update proposals are subject to consultation prior to approval for implementation by the EMC.

We review and update this methodology document on an ongoing basis to reflect methodology and process enhancements.

Recent key enhancements to MSCI SDG Alignment methodology and model include:

 January 2024 – We updated the SDG Alignment methodology to reflect enhancements to MSCI ESG Controversies, used as one of the core inputs to the SDG Operational Alignment assessment. Previously the deduction to SDG Operational Alignment from a company's ESG Controversy assessment was based on the type of controversy and frequency of case severity. The methodology was updated to compute the SDG Operational Alignment based on the type of controversy and frequency of the case flag. The change of assessment criteria from severity of controversy case to controversy flag determines controversy deductions extensively, based on: the case severity, the company role and status of the case.





# **Contact us**

msci.com/contact-us

### AMERICAS

United States	+ 1 888 588 4567 *
Canada	+ 1 416 687 6270
Brazil	+ 55 11 4040 7830
Mexico	+ 52 81 1253 4020

### **EUROPE, MIDDLE EAST & AFRICA**

South Africa	+ 27 21 673 0103
Germany	+ 49 69 133 859 00
Switzerland	+ 41 22 817 9777
United Kingdom	+ 44 20 7618 2222
Italy	+ 39 02 5849 0415
France	+ 33 17 6769 810

### **ASIA PACIFIC**

China	+ 86 21 61326611
Hong Kong	+ 852 2844 9333
India	+ 91 22 6784 9160
Malaysia	1800818185 *
South Korea	+ 82 70 4769 4231
Singapore	+ 65 67011177
Australia	+ 612 9033 9333
Taiwan	008 0112 7513 *
Thailand	0018 0015 6207 7181 *
Japan	+ 81 3 4579 0333
* toll-free	

## About MSCI

MSCI is a leading provider of critical decision support tools and services for the global investment community. With over 50 years of expertise in research, data and technology, we power better investment decisions by enabling clients to understand and analyze key drivers of risk and return and confidently build more effective portfolios. We create industry-leading researchenhanced solutions that clients use to gain insight into and improve transparency across the investment process.

### About MSCI ESG Research Products and Services

MSCI ESG Research products and services are provided by MSCI ESG Research LLC, and are designed to provide in-depth research, ratings and analysis of environmental, social and governancerelated business practices to companies worldwide. ESG ratings, data and analysis from MSCI ESG Research LLC. are also used in the construction of the MSCI ESG Indexes. MSCI ESG Research LLC is a Registered Investment Adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and a subsidiary of MSCI Inc.

To learn more, please visit <u>www.msci.com</u>.



# Notice and disclaimer

This document is research for informational purposes only and is intended for institutional professionals with the analytical resources and tools necessary to interpret any performance information. Nothing herein is intended to promote or recommend any product, tool or service.

This document and all of the information contained in it, including without limitation all text, data, graphs, charts (collectively, the "Information") is the property of MSCI Inc. or its subsidiaries (collectively, "MSCI"), or MSCI's licensors, direct or indirect suppliers or any third party involved in making or compiling any Information (collectively, with MSCI, the "Information Providers") and is provided for informational purposes only. The Information may not be modified, reverse-engineered, reproduced or redisseminated in whole or in part without prior written permission from MSCI. All rights in the Information are reserved by MSCI and/or its Information Providers.

The Information may not be used to create derivative works or to verify or correct other data or information. For example (but without limitation), the Information may not be used to create indexes, databases, risk models, analytics, software, or in connection with the issuing, offering, sponsoring, managing or marketing of any securities, portfolios, financial products or other investment vehicles utilizing or based on, linked to, tracking or otherwise derived from the Information or any other MSCI data, information, products or services.

The user of the Information assumes the entire risk of any use it may make or permit to be made of the Information. NONE OF THE INFORMATION PROVIDERS MAKES ANY EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OR REPRESENTATIONS WITH RESPECT TO THE INFORMATION (OR THE RESULTS TO BE OBTAINED BY THE USE THEREOF), AND TO THE MAXIMUM EXTENT PERMITTED BY APPLICABLE LAW, EACH INFORMATION PROVIDER EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMS ALL IMPLIED WARRANTIES (INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, ANY IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF ORIGINALITY, ACCURACY, TIMELINESS, NON-INFRINGEMENT, COMPLETENESS, MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE) WITH RESPECT TO ANY OF THE INFORMATION.

Without limiting any of the foregoing and to the maximum extent permitted by applicable law, in no event shall any Information Provider have any liability regarding any of the Information for any direct, indirect, special, punitive, consequential (including lost profits) or any other damages even if notified of the possibility of such damages. The foregoing shall not exclude or limit any liability that may not by applicable law be excluded or limited, including without limitation (as applicable), any liability for death or personal injury to the extent that such injury results from the negligence or willful default of itself, its servants, agents or sub-contractors.

Information containing any historical information, data or analysis should not be taken as an indication or guarantee of any future performance, analysis, forecast or prediction. Past performance does not guarantee future results.

The Information may include "Signals," defined as quantitative attributes or the product of methods or formulas that describe or are derived from calculations using historical data. Neither these Signals nor any description of historical data are intended to provide investment advice or a recommendation to make (or refrain from making) any investment decision or asset allocation and should not be relied upon as such. Signals are inherently backward-looking because of their use of historical data, and they are not intended to predict the future. The relevance, correlations and accuracy of Signals frequently will change materially.

The Information should not be relied on and is not a substitute for the skill, judgment and experience of the user, its management, employees, advisors and/or clients when making investment and other business decisions. All Information is impersonal and not tailored to the needs of any person, entity or group of persons.

None of the Information constitutes an offer to sell (or a solicitation of an offer to buy), any security, financial product or other investment vehicle or any trading strategy.

It is not possible to invest directly in an index. Exposure to an asset class or trading strategy or other category represented by an index is only available through third party investable instruments (if any) based on that index. MSCI does not issue, sponsor, endorse, market, offer, review or otherwise express any opinion regarding any fund, ETF, derivative or other security, investment, financial product or trading strategy that is based on, linked to or seeks to provide an investment return related to the performance of any MSCI index (collectively, "Index Linked Investments"). MSCI makes no assurance that any Index Linked Investments will accurately track index performance or provide positive investment returns. MSCI Inc. is not an investment adviser or fiduciary and MSCI makes no representation regarding the advisability of investing in any Index Linked Investments.

Index returns do not represent the results of actual trading of investible assets/securities. MSCI maintains and calculates indexes, but does not manage actual assets. The calculation of indexes and index returns may deviate from the stated methodology. Index returns do not reflect payment of any sales charges or fees an investor may pay to purchase the securities underlying the index or Index Linked Investments. The imposition of these fees and charges would cause the performance of an Index Linked Investment to be different than the MSCI index performance.

The Information may contain back tested data. Back-tested performance is not actual performance, but is hypothetical. There are frequently material differences between back tested performance results and actual results subsequently achieved by any investment strategy.

Constituents of MSCI equity indexes are listed companies, which are included in or excluded from the indexes according to the application of the relevant index methodologies. Accordingly, constituents in MSCI equity indexes may include MSCI Inc., clients of MSCI or suppliers to MSCI. Inclusion of a security within an MSCI index is not a recommendation by MSCI to buy, sell, or hold such security, nor is it considered to be investment advice.

Data and information produced by various affiliates of MSCI Inc., including MSCI ESG Research LLC and Barra LLC, may be used in calculating certain MSCI indexes. More information can be found in the relevant index methodologies on www.msci.com.

MSCI receives compensation in connection with licensing its indexes to third parties. MSCI Inc.'s revenue includes fees based on assets in Index Linked Investments. Information can be found in MSCI Inc.'s company filings on the Investor Relations section of msci.com.

MSCI ESG Research LLC is a Registered Investment Adviser under the Investment Advisers Act of 1940 and a subsidiary of MSCI Inc. Neither MSCI nor any of its products or services recommends, endorses, approves or otherwise expresses any opinion regarding any issuer, securities, financial products or instruments or trading strategies and MSCI's products or services are not a recommendation to make (or refrain from making) any kind of investment decision and may not be relied on as such, provided that applicable products or services from MSCI ESG Research may constitute investment advice. MSCI ESG Research materials, including materials utilized in any MSCI ESG Indexes or other products, have not been submitted to, nor received approval from, the United States Securities and Exchange Commission or any other regulatory body. MSCI ESG and climate ratings, research and data are produced by MSCI ESG Research LLC, a subsidiary of MSCI Inc. MSCI ESG Indexes, Analytics and Real Estate are products of MSCI Inc. that utilize information from MSCI ESG Research LLC. MSCI Indexes are administered by MSCI Limited (UK).

Please note that the issuers mentioned in MSCI ESG Research materials sometimes have commercial relationships with MSCI ESG Research and/or MSCI Inc. (collectively, "MSCI") and that these relationships create potential conflicts of interest. In some cases, the issuers or their affiliates purchase research or other products or services from one or more MSCI affiliates. In other cases, MSCI ESG Research rates financial products such as mutual funds or ETFs that are managed by MSCI's clients or their affiliates, or are based on MSCI Inc. Indexes. In addition, constituents in MSCI Inc. equity indexes include companies that subscribe to MSCI products or services. In some cases, MSCI clients pay fees based in whole or part on the assets they manage. MSCI ESG Research has taken a number of steps to mitigate potential conflicts of interest and safeguard the integrity and independence of its



research and ratings. More information about these conflict mitigation measures is available in our Form ADV, available at https://adviserinfo.sec.gov/firm/summary/169222.

Any use of or access to products, services or information of MSCI requires a license from MSCI. MSCI, Barra, RiskMetrics, IPD and other MSCI brands and product names are the trademarks, service marks, or registered trademarks of MSCI or its subsidiaries in the United States and other jurisdictions. The Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS) was developed by and is the exclusive property of MSCI and S&P Global Market Intelligence. "Global Industry Classification Standard (GICS)" is a service mark of MSCI and S&P Global Market Intelligence.

MIFID2/MIFIR notice: MSCI ESG Research LLC does not distribute or act as an intermediary for financial instruments or structured deposits, nor does it deal on its own account, provide execution services for others or manage client accounts. No MSCI ESG Research product or service supports, promotes or is intended to support or promote any such activity. MSCI ESG Research is an independent provider of ESG data.

Privacy notice: For information about how MSCI collects and uses personal data, please refer to our Privacy Notice at <a href="https://www.msci.com/privacy-pledge">https://www.msci.com/privacy-pledge</a>.